
Agenda Item B.2
CPMS CONSENT CALENDAR

Meeting Date:  June 7, 2016
____________________________________________________________

TO: Mayor and Councilmembers

FROM: Rosemarie Gaglione, Public Works Director

CONTACT: Marti Milan, Principal Civil Engineer

SUBJECT: Professional Design Services Agreement with Pavement Engineering Inc., 
for a Pavement Maintenance/Rehabilitation Project

RECOMMENDATION:

Authorize the City Manager to execute a Professional Design Services Agreement with 
Pavement Engineering Inc., to prepare plans, specifications and an engineer’s estimate 
for a Fiscal Year (FY) 16-17 pavement maintenance project, slurry seal, in an amount 
not to exceed $67,480.

BACKGROUND:

On November 4, 2014, Joe Ririe, Principal Engineer with Pavement Engineering Inc.
(PEI), gave a presentation to Council regarding pavement ratings and preservation 
techniques as well as the overall pavement condition index (PCI) of the City’s streets. In 
March of 2016, PEI provided a presentation to Council describing a proposed five year 
pavement management program strategy, which included multi-level PCI of 70 for 
arterials, 67 for collectors and 65 for residential streets. Council approved this approach. 
Council directed staff to move forward with the pavement rehabilitation program. PEI 
recently completed the design of the FY15/16 Pavement Rehabilitation Project –
Overlay (FY 15/16 Overlay).  

Staff recommends combining the FY 15/16 Pavement Rehabilitation Project with the FY 
16/17 Pavement Rehabilitation Project. The combined projects will benefit the City by 
leveraging volume discounts, which will provide the City with the best unit price, 
maximum area rehabilitated, and less disruption to the public by reducing contractor
mobilization. The project plans and specifications will be brought to Council for approval 
and authorization to bid at an upcoming meeting.

DISCUSSION:

PEI has extensive experience working with multiple Public Works Departments in both 
Santa Barbara and San Luis Obispo Counties. The firm specializes in pavement 
rehabilitation and maintenance. In 2014, PEI completed a comprehensive evaluation of 
the City’s street system and design of the FY 15/16 Overlay. Because of PEI’s 
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familiarity with local street conditions, they are uniquely situated to perform this design 
project. Therefore, staff requested a proposal from PEI for design of the FY 16-17 
Pavement Rehabilitation Project. PEI submitted a proposal in the amount of $67,480 for
the preparation of plans, specifications and an Engineer’s Estimate (PS&E) for the FY 
16-17 Pavement Rehabilitation Project. PEI will assist in selecting project streets, 
proposing specific treatments based on various tests, measuring field quantities, 
preparing contract documents and estimates and providing bid support services. PEI 
will also combine the FY 15/16 and FY 16/17 Pavement Rehabilitation Project plans and 
specification into one complete construction document bid set.  

PEI is a qualified engineering firm that is capable of completing this project in the 
specified time frame. Staff recommends execution of a Professional Design Services 
Agreement with PEI for engineering design services for the FY 16-17 Pavement 
Rehabilitation Project in an amount not to exceed $67,480.

GOLETA STRATEGIC PLAN:

Approval of the Professional Design Services Agreement with PEI, for a Pavement 
Rehabilitation Project is consistent with City-Wide Strategy 3, “Strengthen 
Infrastructure,” as well as the Strategic Goal “City-wide infrastructure including roads 
and traffic circulation.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

The FY 15-16 Budget includes approximately $1,293,975 and the FY 16-17 Budget 
includes approximately $2,009,905 for the Pavement Rehabilitation Program in General 
Fund, Measure A and Gas Tax for a combined total amount of $3,303,880. 

Staff recommends that Council award a time and materials contract for design services 
to Pavement Engineering Inc. in an amount not to exceed $67,480 through the General 
Fund.

The actual scope of pavement treatments and repairs may be modified based on 
detailed design costs or the actual bid costs to meet the available budget. If there is not 
sufficient budget to construct repairs on all of the streets designed for the project, some 
streets may be postponed to the following years for rehabilitation.

Account Fund Type FY15-16 Budget 
Remaining Balance

FY16-17 Budget
Recommended

101-5-5800-413 General Fund $536,666 $1,090,810
201-5-5800-413 Gas Tax $235,000 $704,095
205-5-5800-413 Measure A $522,309 $215,000
Total $1,293,975 $2,009,905
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ALTERNATIVES:

Council could elect not to award the design services contract to PEI and direct staff to 
request other proposals from qualified firms. However, doing so would impact the timing 
of the project and could potentially postpone construction until the summer of 2017.

Legal Review By: Approved By:

_________________________ ____________________
Tim W. Giles Michelle Greene
City Attorney             City Manager

ATTACHMENT:

1. Agreement for Professional Design Services between the City of Goleta and 
Pavement Engineering Inc.
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ATTACHMENT 1

Agreement for Professional Design Services between the City of Goleta and Pavement 
Engineering Inc.
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